

A Brief history of Tower Hill Cemetery

After the Secretary of State had decided that the existing St Mary's Churchyard should be closed for burials following new Acts of Parliament in 1849, a new burial ground was needed in Witney.

The Board considered areas for the new Burial Ground and settled on a piece of green and pasture land 3a 1r 25p on 'Galley Hill' in the Tything of Curbridge, in Witney Parish. It was purchased for £170 by an agreement dated 20th March 1856 between the Board and Charles Richard, Bishop of Winchester and George Spencer Churchill, Duke of Marlborough. £51 went to the Bishop and £119 6s to the Duke.



The first burial took place in January 1857 and the Church Vestry (via the Burial Board) continued to manage and maintain the cemetery until it was incorporated into the new Urban District Council in 1894. Extensions were made to the cemetery in 1890 and 1936.

The Town Council became responsible for the cemetery in the Local Government reorganization of 1974 and it continues to manage and maintain the site. Burial registers before 1940 are held at the Oxfordshire Register Office in Oxford. Witney Burial Board was formed from a Vestry meeting of the Witney Parish on Thursday 2nd August 1855. The 9 members elected to the Board were; Rev R Sankey, Rev Mr. Mayer and Messrs. J. W. Clinch, J. Francis, W. Dutton Sen, J. Clinch Jun, S. Lea, H. C. Townsend and S. Shuffrey. The Clerk was James Westell.



The architect employed by the Board was the Local Surveyor William Wilkinson who was also responsible for designing Holy Trinity Church, Witney Police Station, Hailey Church and other buildings in and around Witney, but is widely known now for his masterpiece which was the Randolph Hotel in Oxford. Wilkinson oversaw the work of two local builders. James Long Jun and Malachi Bartlett who completed the works. The specifications for the work are held by the Town Council and stated that stones should be from Taynton, Windrush or Milton quarries or Bath stone and the roofs should be of Stonesfield Slate. All of this of course should be carried out in a workmanlike manner. The cost of erecting the chapels and Cemetery Keeper's Lodge and laying out the grounds was £1360.



www.witney-tc.gov.uk

